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Crorrve Hussain Chardhury & Co,
(Chartered Accountants)

H{xEe no 982, Street no 21, Phase d
Bfi hria To$rn, lslamabad

T*:+SE t5l) 5?3?5e1-2
Fax: +$2 {5tJ 5732505
croweho rwathp k @gma i [.com
cahabib@hotmail.com
www.crowepak"com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF

PAKISTAN STONE DEYELOPMENT COMPANY

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of PAKISTAN STONE DEYELOPMENT
COMPANY (the Company) which comprises the statement of financial position as at June 30,
2023,the statemeflt of ptofit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, tlre statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a sunma{/ of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
best of out knowledge and belief, were necessary for the pqpose of the audit.

In out opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, 'the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together
rvith the notes foming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as

applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XD( of
201,7), in the manfler so requfued and respectively give a true arrd fatt view of the state of the
Company's affatrs as at June 30,2023 and of the loss, other comprehensive loss, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standatds on Auditing (ISAs) as

applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standatds are further described in the
Auditots' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics fot Ptofessional Accountaflts as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have firlfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. \We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suff,cient and
appropdate to ptovide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

\ff/e draw uset attention to note 72.1.7 to the firrarrcial statement which describes the uncertainty
relating to the outcome of pending lawsuit tegatding the price escalation of iand acquired for the
Marble City Risalpur. In this respect, The Company has recognized an amouflt of Rs. 833.033
million as developmeflt properties as discussed under detailed note 17 to these frnarrc:o,l statements

and respective advances fiom the customers received amounting to Rs. 809.1,33 million as atJune
30,2023, as descdbed in the note 11 to these financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Information Othet than Financial Statements and Auditot's Repot Theteon

Management is responsible for the othet information. Othet information comprises of clitectors,
repott for the yeat ended June 30, 2023 b* doesn't include the financial statemerits and our
auditor's report thereon.

Out opinion on tfre financial statements doesn't cover the other information and we don,t express
any fonrr ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with out audit of the frnancial statemeflts, orrr responsibiJity is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is matedally inconsistent with
the financial statements or oru knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 

^ppexto 
be matedally

misstated. I{ based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matenal
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report rhat fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is tesponsibie fot the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statemeflts in
accotdance with the accoqnting.and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
tequirements of Companies Act, 2017CI(II. of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the prepatation of financialstatements that are free from mateial
misstatemeng whether due to fraud or eror.

In pteparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company,s
ability to continue as a going coflcern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and
using the goirrg concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company ot to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of ditectors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financtalreporting process.

Auditot's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are fiee from material misstatement, whether due to fiaud or error, and to issue an aud"itor,s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 

^ gour^irt""
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as appJicable in Pakistan will always detect a
mateia) misstatement when it exists. Misstatemerits can arise from ftaud ot etot and, ate

- considered material if, individually ot in the 
^ggreg 

te, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financtalstatements.

As part of at audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistalr, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. $7e also:

o Jdentify and assess the risks of mateia) misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or eror, design and perforrr audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropiate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a mateialmisstatement resulting from ftaud is higher than ior one
resulting ftom etot, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the overide of intemal control.
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Obtain an undetstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
ptocedutes thzt are appropdate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of exptessing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company's intemal conffol.

Evaluate the approptiateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related discrosures made by management.

Conclude on the apptopriateness of managemencs use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a mateialuncertainty exists
telated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company,s ability to
continue as a going concefn. If we conclude that a mateia| uncertainry e*ists, we are
tequired to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the frnancial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained of to the date of or.rr auditor,s report. However,
frrtue events ot conditiofls may caose the Company to cease to continue as a going
conceln.

o Evaluate the overali pres'entation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represerit the undedying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

we communicate with the board of clirectors regarding, among other matters, the planned scopeand timing of the audit and significant uoait tnaingl, including any significant deficiencies ininternal contol that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement

Based or ouf audit, we further report that in our opinion:

n proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act"2017 (XD( of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes il equity, the statement of cash flows
togethet with the notes theteon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ac!
2017 6rx of 2017) a',d are in agteement urith books of account and returns;t) investrnents made, expenditure incured and, guarantees extended during the year were for
the puqpose of the Company,s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr ordinance, 19g0 $VIII of
1e80).

The engagement partnet on the audit resulting in this independent auditor,s report is C.A Habi
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Place: Islamabad
Dated:
IIDIN. AP()N'AIN"I

#ffim.:l kforve lce
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PAKTSTAN STONE DEYELOPMENT COMPANY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ASATJUNE 30,2023

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERYES
Share capital

Advaace against issue of shares

Accumulated deficit

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for leave encashment

Defined benefit - $atuiry
Lease liability

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

Advances from customers

Lease liability

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Propety and equipment

Receivables from projects - net

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores and spare parts

Stock in trade

D evelopment propetties

Trade debts - considered good

Advances

Deposits and prepayments

Short term investment

Othet receivables

Income tax refundable

Cash and bank balances

2023 2022

Restated

Note ------------(PakRuPees)

1,021,855,000

1,172,580,402

,578,9
718,856,443

1,021,855,000

1.,172,580,402

1,,996,768,904

207,666,498

8

9

t2

314961223

311774,214

34,610,431

3,967,456

33,365,080

6,649,040

43,981.,576

10

IL
72

561074,727

809,133,760

7,9221122

873,130,609

59,970,260

780,933,760

7,154,767

847,058,787

148,864,063

24,661,870

173,525,872

1,086,657,489 _1,098J06,861_

13

74

t5

149,2001484

91673,037

156,813,527

t6
77

18

79

2A

2t
22

23

24

26

1919091912

156,873

833,033,178

17,5891619

6,152,123

21855,429

9,000,000

3,4121353

3212341641

5,499,840

929,843,968

28,86A,784

784,365

905,920,698

17,776,854

7,543,641.

2,881,885

10,000,000

1.,949,540

31.,788,978

17,774,244

925,1.80,989

6

v

notes, from 1. to 36, form an integral part of these llnancial

1,098,706,861
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PAKTSTAN STONE DEYELOPMENT COMPANY
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross Profit

Administrative expenses

Provision for doubtful debts

Reversal of Impairment on teceivables from projects

Reversal of Impaitment on MCR

Impairment due to decrease in NRV of stotes and spare patts

Finance charges on lease

Other income

2023 2022

Restated

------------(Pak Rupees)Note

27

28

96,323,288

30,540,262

85,888,2L3
'4,036,7

11.,851,477

29

19 &23
15

(85,911,381)

16,835,590

(8,002,486)

(1327,698)

11,595,604

(66,810,371)

09,853,355)
(687,596)

6,1.24,000

1.9,385,504

(1,388,185)

16,245,274

(40,174,359)

Loss for the year

The annexed notes, from 1 to 36, form an integral part of these financial statemeflts.

DIRECTOROFFICER
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PAKISTAN STONE DE\IELOPMENT COMPA]VY
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year:
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified in profit or loss:

Remeasurement gain on gratuity

Total comprehensive loss for the year

The annexed notes, from 1 to 36, form an integral part ofthese

2023 2022

Restated

---"----(Pak Rupees)

(36,2t0,109) Q8,322,992)

9"1 7,460,054 1,309,690

Note

_(28,810,055I

ftrrancial statements.

Q7,01.3,192)
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PAKISTAN STONE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3A,2023

CASH FLO$TS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss f<rr the ycar

Adiustruents for:
Ilq:recittr-xr
Pror.ision for leave eocashtrent

Ptor.ision for gratuiq.

Iiinance cost o1l right of use asset

Pr*r'isio* lnr doubt&ll debts

\I.rdntlr r:ff st,:ck in rade
\\'ritten off stores ald spare parts

Rer.ersal of Impairment on receir.ables frnm projects

lncome from savlqg accoullts and'Ii)Rs

Cheng* ix r*,crking capital:
Dcr r'lnp u renr lrroilcr-ties
'frade debts

,\c'lvalrces '
L-)rpr:sit i1*d prepar'file1lts

f-]thr-:r rereirabks

Stoke in tr:rde
"I'rade ancl clther: pavables

Stores arrd spares

Adva*ct:s ftt:rn custr;mtrs

Cash (used in) operating actiyities

Tax paicl

l ear.e elcashrlelt pairl

Steff r*tirernent bei:r:fits paid

Net Cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLO$TS FROM INVESTING ACTIVTTIES
,\cquisiti*lr *f pnrprtr. and ee1:ipmr*t
Rcct'rvables tionr l)r'( )lects

Proceeds from interest on sariug ncc()unts ancl'I'DRs

Net c*sh (used in) / generated from investing activities

CASH FLOSTS FROM FINANCING ACTIYITIES
I.,*rsc rettal paid

Net cssh (used iai investing activitie*

aA23 2022

Restated

------------(Pak Rupees)

(36,210J49) (28,322,882)

14.2

8.1

L9 &,23
17

T6

30

33J55,610

131,526

91441,523

L,327,699

627,492

8,002,486

(16,835,590)

32,886,295

33,fl8J,668

150,785

5,58-+,51 5

1,38tt,185

687,596
.t7B"ri6l

(6,124,000)

12,019

-)i,L)-)i1,-) J -1

15

(27,n2,480)
r87,235

1,391,518

26,456

{1"562,8,{,

(2,895,533)

948,386

28p80,00{}

{8t7332}
(4t201,046)

(445,663)

{602,759)

(4,22*,757'

(605,895)

798,227

2,164,450

2,356,792

(8,421,803) (6,935,692)

{110,370,229)
4,527,748

1,782,346

413,195
? t{1 ?(?

2,096,644

3,795,500

i-i5

{i.-199,9'li)
(3,28+,+93)

(1,3.+6,685)

(8*-1,51+)

(1,:{}{.}

\-),lJl 1 ! rvv)

(+11,769)

6,52-i,uli0
r 1l? n70

8,32+,310

('?,289,383)

(7,2*9,3*3j
(6,553,985)

(r;,553,985)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the vear
Cash aAcash equiralents at the beginning of the vear
Cash {nd \ash equivalents at t}re end of the year

\ .l, n. -,\f,, notcs,,tr:orr l to 3(r, {orm an inte.qral part i:ri tirese

z,

(fi,274,494), {5,165,366)

32,939,(r1()

financial



PAT(STAN STONE DEYELOPMENT COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

TI{E COMPANT'AND NATURE OF OPERaTIONS
Fakistar Str-xte ller,ei()prneilt Cotrpaty {the Cotrparrv) is a public corlrparry lirr iteci l:y guararnee luvilg
share capital, incorporated and iicensed under sectioll -12 of the Conrpanies Act, 2017. The Colrpanv is a

subsidiaq, of Ministry of hdustries and Productior, Gor-ernmeflt of Pakistan O,IOIP) (ther Parent

Companv). PA.SDEC's r.rsion is "To nr,eke Pakistan globa1lv competitir,-e & social11, responsible pler,er of
tlrt: inteuatit-xral ditrensi*ta-l stt.rne ilri*strr:". This ir:vr.rlves rietrolstratiol r-rf mechanized r:rining ald
rrnx{r=:t redxriq*r:r drrt*g:h r=*:bii*Lnrr:eF..l*q:Fs:rt s;f nrtalrd qr:,trrie*, tpgrarlafir:r-: *l esistt-rg rp:lrries.
establishrnent of industriai cities and rock mrning trarrrrrg institutes to in.rpart qrranring skills in Pakistan.

Tlie registcred office of the Cornparry is situatecl at Islamabad Charnber of Commerce Burldrng, 2rcl flclor,
G-8/ 1, l\{aur.e Area, Islamabad, Pakistan.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
-llpse fil,tuciri statements har-e been prepated it accr:tdaace rvith the accor-rnting and reporting standards

as applicairle it Pakistan. Ifre accr:runtiag end tep*rriqg starrdards applicable irr llakistan comprise r:1:

- International Financral Reirorting Stan<lards (IIriRS Stanciartls), issuecl by the lntetnational Accounting
Standards Board (IASR) as notified under the Companies Act,3017;

- Ptor-isions of arrd directir.es issued tinder the Conrpanies Act, 2017; and

- Acct:unring Standard k-rr Nr:t fr:r prliirt Otg*.rrisati*as issued b]. the lnstilute r-rf Charteted Accolintaflrs of
P:*irtall

\X,here pror.rsions of and rjirectir.es issued under the Compames Act, 2017 drit-er ftou the IFR-S Star-rciards,

the pror-isions of arrd clirecti-'.es issued ulder thc Conrpanics Act,2017 have been foilorved.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
'ilresc linancial statenrerrts hare l:cen prcpared uadet the histr-riral cr:st conventi rn.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATTON CURRENCY
T'he financial statements ate presellted in Pakistan liupees (l'KR) r.vhich is the Conrpanv's functional and
presentation Cuffellcy.

USE CF ACCOUN?ING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
t he preparation of ilnancial statements is in conlbrmity u,'itir appror.ed accourltirlg anci rcportrng standards
that requite the use of certain cntical accounting estimates. They also require manageolent to exercise its
judgment in the process of appl1.rng the Conrpanr's accounting policies. Irstirnates and judgmeflrs are
contimralll evaittated anri are based orr hislr:ric experiencc alrl othr:r factors, incluclrlg expectati{}ns of
fi.rArre e.ve*ts that art ln-'liertrJ tu be rcasc*able *cdtr the circr.urrstatces. Rer-isiol1s tc accourrtirrg estirrrtcs
:trt: tc*gr:ized ir: the pc'riod in rr*'iich tlre estir*;rtrs :rr rc.-.rsed a*d ir: ar-r1 lrtture period :rffected.

f'}:e estkutes and under'lyir€ assunrptir.rrs are rer-ierved on ail oflg{ling basis. Revisirxs to accountiflg
estiniirtes are rcc,:grized prospectir.eh-.

I*f<-rrrrrati*rr al:ottt cntical itrdgrne*ts in appiring policies thar have fhe most significant et-fect t.,n the
afilouots rr:crgnizrri in the financial sfatei:rsrts is as fr--,llou.s:

')

2.L

2.2

2.3

3.



P-dKI ST{\ STONE DEYELOP\IE \T CO\1P.\-\
\iOTES TO THE FIN.{\CLI.L STATE}IE\TS
FOR THE \EAR ENDED JUNE 3A,2023

a) Properr*- and equipmenr
fhe Compailr rer-ielvs useful 1^-es and resrdual r-ahre oi properrl and equipment o11 a regular basis. ,{,y
charrge il estimates in furure teals mrght aftect the ."..,-rrrg allx)Lults of tire respectrve items of propefi,
and equrpment t'ith a cr-rrres;londi4g effect r-xr the depreciation cirarge and rmpairment.

bi Impairment of tron eurrent assets
t he cam'rflg amormts t.'f the Ccxlpany's non clirrert assets are reviervecl at each reportilg clate to
dctermrne u'herther there is any indication of impair'flrent loss. Any change in estimates in futurq 1.s215mrght aff-ect the carrying amotults of respectir-e assets u,ith u .o...rpoic1ing effect o1 a"p.".ioiirrr)
amor&atioo charge and irrrpairrr-ent.

c) Stcrcs *nd spare parrs
rhe conrpany reviervs the canling amouflt of stores ancl spare parts on a regular basis to assess anv
difiriflution in carq'ing r-aiue. Carrl.ing value of stores, spare parts ancl loose toclls ls adjusted -whete the r-ret
realiz-atrle r-alue is belo*. the cost.

d) Provisian agaiast ttade debts, adv*nces *nd otker receir,-ables
The can'ying amouflts of tradr: detrts, advatces and other receivables are assessecl o, a reg,lar basis an4 if
there is any doubt about th'e reliabilitl' of thei canrillg arnounts, appropriate arnoulrt of prorisicxr is ,rade.

e) Provisions and contingencies
l1te iiofirparrv tevieu's the statrrs t-rf all tire legal cases cr a reguJar basis. Baseil o11 the expecrc:cl .rutcorre
anci larr"Ters' jucigments, appropflate clisclosure or pro'ision is made.

f; Stock in trade
'flie Cr:n4ran1' le'iervs the car:n'ing ral*e of sttick ia trade tr: assess afll. diarinuticln rn car:rring ralue,s. Net
realizable rah-re is deten:rifled rvith rr:feretce tc cs*Bated scllilg pricer less estitl"ated expendit,res ro .r-akc
tI:c s;:ies.

CHANGES IN ACCOUTING STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS ANDPRONOUNCEMENT

Steridattls. afirerrdrteflts arld itte+]retatir:t tr-.i esstirg stanilards thar ;rte rrot 1,et effecrir-e and lu'e ni;t
been earlv adopted by the Conrpanv.

Effective date
(annual reporting periods

beginning ou or after)

January 7,2A23

January 1,,2023

Jaruan' t, ?t133

.fantiary 1,2023

Jarruarl 1,2A22

Jar:uar1 1" 20?:

4.

4.r.

i,{S i Amerrirrtrlt: to 'IAS 1 arrii Ij,RS pracficr Statemert a'

Disclosure of Accountrng policrl.
Amendme'ts to IAS 1 'presentation of Fi,ancral Statements'
classificatu;n of Liabilities as cuuent clr Non-Cunent

1,1S S -,\ccorintirrg prlicies, charges jn accorurtirr-g estifil.atrs ard error
(Auendmeats)

IAS 12 fncome taxes (arneltlnelts)
IAS 16 Properg, Plalt alil Ecpdpment (,{crendrlenrs)

IAS 37 Provision, conti*ge;rt l-,iairiiities arrd f-'rri*gent Assets
(Anrend::rents)
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PAKISTAN STONE DEYELOPMENT COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property and equipment

f hese are initiallv tecognized at acquisition cost, incluclilg any costs duectlv attribr-rtable to brilgng the
assets to the klcaticxr and contlitiofl ilecessa{r [t.ir it to bc capable of operating ir the mamrer inteirclerl by
tht C<:1}rparrt"s tamtagcrrrelt. These assets a{s substquartll oreaslu'et{ .,sirg the cost modrl} c{}st less
xibsrqlccf rLpleciatit;n and ir:rgrainnt::t lossr:s, iI anr.

T'he cost rncludes the cost olreplacingpar:ts o[the plant and equipment when t6at c6st is rnc*r-red, rt rhe
recognition critcria are n1et. Depreciatiol is charged using the straight iine methocl at the rates specifiecl in
note 14 rvhen assets ate available for usc. No depreciatiol is charged on the assets ir the motrth of sale /
disposal, s'hile hrll depreciatiou is chargecl ur the trolrth of acquisiriofl. .h,{ainreflalce a'd no,ml rrpairs are
cirargrd t* i[ct-:*rt lrlr the yeer as and rr.hrr incurrr:d, q,hi]e m.rior reaeu,.als a1d irnprt-:r-cfll-r11ts are
capir*ir;r-r*.

'I'he carrying arlounts of the Conrpanl,'s assets are reliervecl at each clate ctf the statement of financial
position to detetrr- ine u'hether there is any indication r.lf impairmeni loss. If any such rnilication esists, the
assert's recoveral:le zrrx)unt is estitul.ted in t-rrder to deremrine the e\-tert of t}re impaimre't loss, if a,y-.
Inrp:lirtncnt lttsses are ch*r.qtd trL irrcol:e i-ir the l.ear. Al item of fised irssets ii clercco.4ri-zed ,-rp,,,,
c{isposal ot rx-hen no furutc ecor1olr1lc beneiits are expectecl trora its use. Anv gain or loss arisrng or
dctecognition of the asset is includecl in profit and loss in the vear the asset is clerecognizcd. 'rhe 

asset,s
residual ralues, useftrl hves and trethods of depreciatir:n are rcrrie',ved, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
fiuancitl year end.
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PAKISTAN STONE DEVELOPMEI\rI COMPA}IY
NOTES TO THE FINA}TCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED IUNE 30,20?3

Intangible assets
Ifltertrallv generated intangble assets and other intanflble assets are clistingulshed separately. lntangibie assets
rvith finite life are amortized ovcr their useful life or the aflorrization rates used. The useful litt of an
intalg;rbie asset that arises from contractual or other legal rights shall not exceed the period of the
crxtractrtal or other 1e3pl tghts, but may br: sho$er clepelding or the 1:er:iocl or.er trrhich the eltiri- cxpccrs ro
risc iirc as:ets. .{mortizati{rr is chargerl {}fl ptr} rfttr i}asis.

Stores an<i spare parts

Store and spare parts are ralued at the lou:er of rveighteti arerage cost and net realizable ralue. Cost is basecl
on rvcighted a\,'erage cost principle,s and cornpdse of costs of purchase ancl other costs incurred in bringing
the assets to their preseflt locatiot and cotdition. ltcr*s cotsidered obsolete based on physical form of
relaitrl itcrls are hlllv prr-n.ided ir.r.

Development propelties
I)evelopment propefiies include lard acquired for der.eloprnelt of inrlustrial plots to orppnrze clirnensional
stonc ifldustrv activities, stlch as processing, training. establishrnent of marble storage and displal ccnters.
rvitlrir one licinitr-. These are carried in the balance sheet at lo\r.,er of cost and net realizable ralue. Cost
itciu*es putchasr costs, re'latetl C<;r-enulrr:rrt ralies, c{.x}structiotr cost, brir:rowing cost and othcr overhearls
l1r.tssatl- tr-r brirrg tht ptopertie* it"l sale*blt cr:*diti+a. \et realizable ral*e represetts thr: selling pricr irr the
ordrnary cotrrse of business les*s cost of cornpledol and estimatccl cost flecessary to be incurrecl tbr saie.

Deposits and prepal.rnents
Thcse are recol;nizeri at cost. rvhich is the fair ral*c of tire consideratiorr giren. For measurement of k.lss
all+rralrce l?,:r adralces, clrpcsits and cther recdr-abks. the {iompalr- applie-< rhe IFRS 9 sirnplifieci approach
to measure the expectecl credit iosses.

Receivable from projects
Receir'zble frr-rrn proiects recopyrized at cost thich is espectecl realizable \?lue of piant irnd rnacirinel-
inr-ested in pr*jects.

Ativance from customers
These represent actual amourt received irorn customer against allottment of plots in the inclListrial state being
cler-eloped bl the Cornpanr.

Cash and cash equivalents
Caslr and cash eqtrivalents conprises cF caslr balarces and bark deposits. {Jash equiralenti- are short terni
highlv iiquid itvestments, that are readilv convertible to knorvn aflloulrts of cash anci rvhich are subicct to al
insigrificant risk of change in r.alue.

Trade debts and other receil.ables
Trade dehts and *ther receirables are initialh- rl:cognized at tair raluc *-hich is the ilroice value. After ilitial
recoE'nition these atc measured at amortized cost using the effective ioterest method. less provrsion fcrr
impairme0t (if anl'). Anv change il their ralue is recognizecl in prolit and loss. il'racle anci other rcceivablcs are
assessed on reguiar basis for impairment.



PAKISTAN STONE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE fi,2023

(to

5.11

:"

Restricted graat
Grallts reccil-ecl tbr specif,c purposes and interest thereol are classiied as restricted grarlts. Such gralts arc

transferrecl to income as grants to the extent of actuai expenditure incurred there apy.inst. Fixpenditure
incured agaitst grant cofllmitted but not received is accrued afld recogrized in incomc and is reflected as

rect-iiable from dolrirs. Unsptnt portiorl of such g?atr at ret-lected as restrictecl pgants in the statement of
Erra;:cii-:,! pr:siti*r'r as liabiiitr'.

Deferred capital grant
Nlclnetaq, grant received for capital expenditure is accouoted for as deferred capital pgarrt and recognizecl as

lial:iliq,. .\mount equal to the arnual charge for depreciatiol o1r asset so acquired is recog'nized as incourc irr
the income and c:ipentliture account.

5-U $taffretiremelrttlelrefits
5.12,1 The Company has defined benetit tlnded efatuitv plan for all o[ rts ehgble employees.'].he fund is

administered br tnlstees. Anlual coltribution to the Safuitt, is based on acruarial laluation using Proiccted

Llnit Creclit X{ethod, relatecl details are given in note 9.1 to tlie financial statements.

Cliarge for the 1'ear is recogaized in proflt and loss accoil11t. -{ctnadal gairs or losses arising olr actrarial
r-akntiol art recordr:d directlv in the e.rthcr cornpreLetsire ilcornr.

Calculation of pgaturtv reqaircs as.sunptions to be rnade of tuture outcomes u&rch maillv itclucle increase in
relnufleratiofl, expected lonp; term return ofl plan assets afld the discouflt rate useal to coll\'ert future cash

flon,s to curreflt values. Calculations are sensitir.c to chanf_Ies in underlying assumptiors.

5.12.2 'fhe {};crpa*y acc.-}unts far all comporsate<l absarces uhe* einpinlees ren<ler senices that incr*sc t}rerr

er:titlernerrt to future comper:sated absetces. Cash caarpersatiofl for the balaace tif earneri 1c?1-es up tL)

maximurn of -tr8 days at the tirne of retirement, resiglation. death or tetnination of senice. It shall be parci at
the rate of latest basic salan' to the regular and contract emplovee of the Company.

5.13 Foreign curreflcy transactions
Traasactir:ns in foreigrr curr*ncies are recorrted at tlie mres of exchange rulirg on the date oltire trarrsactrr,rr.

,\ll mr-r:retag a,*t$ arld liah,ilitie: ilear:miaatrd irr f**ign currencies are ttanrlafed iotr-i PliR at tbe rate of
erchange ruling on the balaace sheet date and erchange differetces, if ant'. are charged to incorne and
expenditure accouot ior the year.

Stock in trade
Stcck ic trade is raltrd at lo$.-er r-rf cost or net realizable rahie u.hicher-er is lower. Cost of stock is based on
the rveightecl 'iverage pritciple. Cosr of stock cr-rnr1>rises r.ri clirect labor ancl aplrrol:riatc overhcacls. Net
reaiizable value sipyriEes estimated selling price less costs recessary to be incurred to efttct such sale.

Provisions
Pror-isions are recognized u,hen tire Cornpani, has a presett legal or cr;nstructile obligation as a result of a

past ey.:r11, and it is probable that outt'lorv of resuurces emboclling economic belefits will be retluircl trr

settle the obiigatiou anci a reliable estinate can be rnac{e oithe arnoullt of obiigatiol. Provisiols are rer-ierved
at each Statement of filancial position date ancl acljusteri to reflect the current best estimate.

5.14
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PAKISTAN STONE DEYELOPMENT COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED IUNE 30,2023

5"1$

5.17

T*rde r*d other gayables
Liabilities for tradc and other alnounts pa\,ables are carried at cost rvhich is thc thir ralue consiclered to be
paid i[ the future for goods anil senices receivecl, thether or not billecl to the Companv. Subsequett to
initial recognition tradc and otlrer patables are mcasurcd at amortizecl cost usilg th" Lir...tir,. interest

Ccmpa*y as a lessee

The Company applies a sirr.qle recognitiorr and mea-qurement approach ibr ail leases, except tbr short,tern-l
leases and leases of low-raluc assets. fhe Companl, reco;yrises iease liabilities to rrrake lea.se pavments and
right-of-use assets reprcse'ti,g the right to use the u,clerhtng assets.

Right-cf-use assets

T'!re {i.:n5:*rlr rccog*ire* dgirt-*f-use assefs at the t:rnme*ce*1eot date r:f the lcase ii.e,. the date the
rirrdedYing asset is arzilable for usc). Right-of-use assets are measuretJ at cost, less'anr,- accumulated
dcpreciation afld impairmeut losses, ancl adjustecl fcrr an1 rerneasurelnent of iease liabilities. The cost of nght-
of-use assets includes ther arnoutt of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred. ancl leasc
pal-meflts made at or befcrre the commercerneat date l*s any lease ioccrtir,es received. Right-of-use assets
arc depreciated cl a straiglrt-licr basis ar.er the k:ase trlu.
'Ihe nght-ot-use assets are also subicct to impairment.

Lease liabilities

'\t the com1nellclrfilent date of the lease. tiie (l*rnparir recr-rppises lease liabilities rneasurerl at the present
r,aiui: of lease payflcflts tn be rnade or.er the lease terrn.

hi caicular-itg dre prtserrr raiue of-itase pa5iteuts, rhe Ci-rrtpaa): useJ ir" itcr-erucrrial burr,iwirig rzte at ilie
lcase cornmencemeflt date because the interest rate implicit in the lcase is not readilv cleterninable. After the
colnlnrllcelnellt date, the arnortnt of lease liabilities is increased to ret-lect the accretion of interest ancl
reduced for the lease pavments macle. In aclclitiot, the carrving amouflt of iease liabilities is rerneasurecl if
ilerr is a r:rr-:cliflcarit-ra, a charge in the leasr leflrr: a chargr in the lease pa!.merlts.

T'fur: i-omi:r*r't ie:r--e linb'ilirie-., :tre reilecfetl unr-Irr "i,easc i-i;rbilities., isee -\ore Il].

Revenue recognition
Re-r'enue is neasured af the erir ralue of tire consideration receir.ed or rccei.rable. Rer-emre is recognized t.henIt'*l:t:r!' 0f the c.*isideratiofl is probablt, the a*sociated costs car br estirnatrd reliablr., ti* ar:rrunt of
{c:-t&*il *:s"* bc measured reliabll' aad n-het speci&c criteria ha.re lleer-r met f<rt eacS of the Crxnparv's actir,rties
as described belour:

Income from machinerv rental:
lncorDe frorn reflted equiprncflt is recogrizecl baseil ofl utilizatiofl by the custorner. 'I'he refltal incorne is billed
irr I*i$ r:f r*mpleted hr:urs. Rt:ceipt +f adr.ance rentai is rec*rded as urearned re1'enue.

Revenue from senice contracts:
Revenue frorn sen'ice colltracts is recorcled periodicalh- as the perfornatce obligatiqr is satisfiecl o\ier time.

Iacome sale of stone blocks:
Itcr:mt il*rri r;*lt *f st*nr bltxks is rec*gprized rr.her.l the risk and rcrr:rrds are tra::sferred to tlre cnsf*fljcrs.

Income ori inyestments and bank deposits:
Retufil r:n bank deposits and iotestmeots is recognizeci risinpl the effective iotere-ct method.

Boruorr,ing costs
l{ark-up, itrterest ancl cither clrarges ou borro$'iflss are capitalized up to the date rvhen tlre rpralitl.-iilg assets
are substa*li:tily reacly f*r thejr ir:tericle{ use. Er:rr*gr;rg cr:sf is ilcl*decl i4 t[e rclateel qpali{r.ing assets
acquiretl 7' coastructed out of the proceeds of sucfi borrogings. -All other nrarl--rn inrarpr] an.r rpl-+...-l

5.18
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PAKISTAN STONE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE LEAR ENDED JUNE 3A,2A23

5.19 Fin*neialinstruments
Financiai assets aad financial iiabiiities are recognised in tire statemerit of financiai pcisition rvhen
the Companl, becouc's a partl to thc contractual pror-isions of the insttumerrt.

Financial assets

{a} Classificatioa
'lhe Compaty classiEes tts trnancral assets in the tbllorving rlleasurcnteflt cxtegorles:

(i) Amortised cost,,"r,'hete the etfectiye irterest rate method will apply;

(ii) trair value through profit or loss frVI-PL);
(iii) trair r.aiue through othcr cornpr:ehensive incorne F\,TOCI).

J'he classrtrcation depetds on the entit-v's business model for managrng the turatcral assets and tire
cofltractual terms of the cash flotvs.

For assets nreasurecl at fair r.ahre, gains and losses u-ili either be recordecl in profit or krss or OCI.
Ilr:t iu.estmtnts 11r rjqrilt) irtstrumelts tliat are nat held for traciiqg, this nill clepencl cxr rvhether drc:

{-atrpaa: }ras n:arle at ilrr-vocabie elecdcur at the tirue of initial recoglitiol to acc.iutt fot thc

equity inr.,estment at IiVTOCI.
'fhe Company reclassifie, i"bt imrestments rvhen and only rvhen its business modei fot managrng
those assets chaoges.

Recognition *nd derecognition
Regular u,'ay purchases and sales of tinancial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date or rvilch
the Company comtnits to purchase or sell the asset. Ilurther:, assets a{e dereco.qnised u.hen the
tglrts to teceive cash flou's from the financial assets har.e espired or har-e been tratsferred and the

Companl. has mpsler::ed substantiallr all the risks and reuards of ou.nership.

Measurement
At initial recopgritiot, the Corqrany measures a finarrcial asset at its fau' r.alue plus, in the case clf a

finatcial asset flot at IrVf'PL, transaction costs that are directh, attdbutable to the acquisiticln of thc:

fioaricial asset. l'ffillsaction costs of hnatcial assets carried at F\tI'PL are expensecl in pro6t or ioss.

Debt instruments

Amortised cost
Assets that are held for collection of cottractual cash flou,s u.here thosc cash florvs tepresent scilclv
p'ilmel1ti rif pr'indpal atrd intetest ar.e lileasurcd at amortised cost. Interest income frcm these
firla*rit1 ;t::tts ic iacluded in *ther opeialrta incouc u.rirg the eftectir-e interest rate flethod. Ary
gain or loss arisitg on derecognition is recogrused direct\. in profit or loss ald presetted in cither
operating gellrrs/ (osses), together rvith forergn exchatge gains a.nd losses. Impairment losses are

presented as separatc li.ne item ir the profit r-rr loss.



PAKTSTAN STONE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flou.'s and for selling the financial assets,

u'here the assets' cash flor.rrs represeflt solell.- partrents of plncipal and ilterest, ate measured at

F\IIaJCI. N.Iovetrcnts ir the cam.ing amolult are takr:n tirrough OCl, except for the teco5y"ritiol of
irr1lail.ttrlt gails t-rr L-rsses and interest rel.erlrrt rr,hich are rect:.lyriseil it profit or loss. \\rhcn the

tinancial asset is derecogmsed, the cumuiative :pin or loss previously recognise<1 in C)CI rs

reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recolprseci in other operating gains/(losses). Ioterest

incoue from these financial asscts is rncluded ir other operating income using the effectir e intctcst
rate method. Impairment experses are lreseflted :rs se.parate, lite item il tht profit or loss.

Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or trVf OCI are measured at FV-I'PL. A gain

or loss on a clebt inr-estment that is subsequendy rneastued at F\rfPL is recogrused in profit or lclss

anrl ptsented tr:t u'ith.tr c;ther operatng Spins/(krsses) in tire period in which it arises.

Equity instruments
The Compafly subseqlrently measutes all ecluin m\-estmeflts at thir r-alue. \\'here the Companv's

flLlflageflrt:llt has elected to prescnt fair r.aiue gains and losses on equrf,- ifl\.estments in C)CI, there

is nr: subsequent reclassitrcation of fart rzlue gains and losses to profit or loss folloting the

derecrlyritilra r-rl the i1\:estlnerit. Dir.icJends *rou such intestments c{Lfltriflue to be recogriised rn

profit or loss as other operatirrg rncorne rr,'hen the (,ornpanv's right to receive pa\-fllents 1s

esta.bhshed.

Changes in the fair r,alue of finatcial assets at ITV|PL are recognised in other gains/(osses) in tlie
profit or loss as applicable. Iupairrnent lrrsses (atd rer-ersal of impairment iosses) r)n cqultr
ilr:e:stlrltrris measuted at F\iTOC]I are flrit reported sepirratell. trotr othet changes in iair: rali-re.

Impairment of financial assets
The Compan) assesses on a forrvard looking basis the expected credit losses associated with rts debt

instruments carried at amottised cost and F\rTOCI. The impaitment methodology applied depends

on *'hether *rere iras been a srgnificaat inctease it crerlit risk.

Ir,-lr tr:rik anr{ other recrivabies, t}re {J*mpam' app}ies the sirqrlifird approach pennitted bv IFRS 9,

lvhrch requires expected ht'etime losses to be recotr+rrsed trou imtial recognition clf the receivables.

The Companl. recoglxses life time ECL for trade debts and other receivables, using the simplified
approach. 'I'he expected ctedrt losses on these filalcial assets are estirnated using a ptovision uatrir
basetl on the Compant's historical ctedit loss experietce, arliusted for factors that arc spec:ific to the

rlebtr,rr: arrtl uiher receivables. geceral ecr:nrxric cclrrlitiorrs nrrrl arr asscsslllcflt of br:th thi: cu.trent

as rvell as the forecast direction cif conditions at the rcportiflg date, including time r.,alue of rlonet
t here appropriate.
'l'he rneasurement of expected ctedit iosses is a function oi the probability of clefault, loss grvel
default {i.e. the l:.lgriitLrde t-rf the loss if ther is a ,.1efari1t) alci the e-rposlrre at cleiault. The

assessilrirf cf tire probabilitr uf de:fault anci k;ss grr-en defauit is based on historicai data acijusted

by Iorr+,ard-krcking infonn:rrio* as rlesclited abr;r'e, -\s fbr tire expcsu'e at tlelhuit for financial
assets, this is represerrted by the assets' gloss carn-inp; aflloLiot at the repofting date.
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PAKISTAN STONE DEYELOPMENT COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE 1EAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

'fhe Conrpany recoglllzes an inrpairment gain or loss ur the profit or loss lbt all Enanciai

instruments w-ith a correspond,ing adjustment tr.l their carr\.111g amouflt througir a loss allorvancc

accourrt, except for inr.estments in debt iflstrufileilts that are measured at F'VT'OCI, for rvhich tire

loss allcq'ance is recogrlised in other cLfirprehelsir-e income and accumulated in the inr-eslrnr:nt

reraluatir-:n rererve, arrd dr-res nor reduce the car::.ilg anlonnt r-rf the financial asset il rhe statement

of trnancial position.

Financial liabilities
Classificatir:n, initial rec, lgliti,:n and subsequent measlrrelneflt

Ti-le Conrpa*:. ciassifies its finqlcitl habilities in the fr:1k-rx,r1lg ceteg()ri('sl

o at fair r.alue tlmrugh prr:fit or loss; and

o other financial liabilrties

The Ccmpary rlettxtrines the classificatit-rr ul its iurancial liabiiitres at initial recogritiot. All
fitulrrciai Iabiliries are tecr-rgrrized irritiallv at fair r-aluc. atd, in the case of otlrer financial lirrbiiities,

also inc-lude drrectlv attribtrtable transaction costs. 'I'he subsequent fileasluerneflt of iinancral

liabilities depends on their classification, as fcrllou,,s:

(tl Finaneial liabilities at flir r-aluc tlrrl>righ profit or L.'lss includc financial liabiiities held-for-
tratlirrg arrd fin'.rncial l,iabilities desitrpaterl uptx ioitial recogrritiorr as beirrg at fair ralue
through prolit or loss.

(,i) Aftet rnitial recognition, other Iinancial liablrties u.-hich are interest bearing are subsequentlv

measttrq:d at atrortized cost, Lisiflg the efkctir.e interest rate method. Gain and losses are

recr:gnized in the prclir r-rr kiss, x.het ttre liabilrtres are der:ecllgnized as u.ell as tlu,rtrgl-r

e ffec tiYe itterest rate rnrorlizatron prL)cess.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
'1'he Cor4:an\. clereeri!'flises financiai liabilities *-lren, ald txrlr rvhen, the Companv's obligations atc

dischirgeri, caacelled r-r ther expirt. 'fhr difierence br:t*-t:en the carnirrg afiorult of a flriancial
liabilrt,v extinguished or trarsferrcd to another partv ancl the considetation paid. rncludrng any flolr,
cash assets transfered or liabiiitics assturred is recogrused in profit or loss.

Off-seuing financial assets and financial liabilities
Fltanrial assefs afld Labilities ate ottser aud thc net arllelrilr repor:ted in the statement of frnatcial
position, u{ren there is legallv enforceable right to set off the recognized arnounts atd there is an

intention to settle on a net basis, or rcalize the asse ts and settle the liabilitt, simultaneousil,.

Ta-xation
Ihe {iompafit: \vas .qrarrted apgrrt.x-tl AS a not lor prctrt r:rrgaruzatiot under seciion 2(36) tte Income
'l'ax Qrdin*r:ce, 2*i)1. l{orver.er due to sribserluett c}range in the Income l-ax Ordinrnce,
rl,111agefltet1r has applied tbr retervirl, u'irich is in prrucess irefrrre Ilcorne f'ax'I'ribtural. As per tire
C,.rn4tiury's itcr:me &rx ad:-istr, far,t:rable {lurc.)r}re r-s likell irnd accrirdingl1 pror-ision for tasatr,.ln
hes trot beer-r rceogdzed in these financial starenlel]rs.
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PAKISTAN STONE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE \EAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

5.21 Correction of prior pedod emor
Dr-lrir-ig thc t-car krr corr-rplilrlcc xs pcr ]trRS-16 "l.c.1scs" \\-crc c()rrcctccl in lcrrsc,l6r-rilclir-rg.'lhe cot'rcction is rtccoltntetl k;r rctr()spective ir, rncl the corrprrr.etiyc- infirg.r.rati.n krr 2()12 has Sccr-r
rcstxtccl.

lr-r tl'rc prcvioLrs flnrrncirrl vctr thc c()l-nprnv u.ls consirlering to rclocrtc its hclrl offlcc to prcrliscs oi
irxver rental 

'rlrte consitlcring thc f-rtcr it s'es rccoqnisccl as ()pcmtinq lcrsc. H91.c\.cr. thc,tflcc l.rls
not bccn rcloclrctl ancl lc:rsc shoLrltl bc :rccountcrl firr :rs frnancc lc-esc so rctl-()spccri\.c urljtrstr.r.rcnt
has bccrr n-rlrlc.

Thc corrcctiotr lles l>cctl trlatlc bv rcstrrting c:rch oi thc rrtfcctctl t'jnrrr-rcial st^tc.rcrt Ii.e itcr.rs tirr thc
p1 i, ,1. 

1.q.1.j, rrls. :rs t, rllr rg s:

Staternent of profit or loss

For the year ended,2022For the
Amount

prevously Effect of Amount as

restated: festatementfecorded

Rcnt I:xpcnsc
Intcrcst c,\pcltsc
l)clrrccirrtion

Staternent of fin:rncial position

Rigltt oi use issut
I-cese lirbilitv
I)rcplt rtrcnt

6,007,919 (6,007,919)
1,389,195

5,796,269

As atJune 30,2022

1,399,195

5,796,269

Amount
previosuly
recofded

Effect of
festatement

Amount as

restated

546,165

13,173,339

13,903,907
13,173,339

13,903,907
(546,165)
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2023 2022

------------(Pak Rupees)

C)rdirran shares t,rf ]ts.1t-l rach fi.rlit paid
ir: c:ask l.19*,000"{}00 1,1{!{!,{!{!il,{.}0{i

7.

7.1

8.

8,1

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

2023 2i)22

{Nurxrber *f shares}

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each flilly paid

____102, 185,5!!_ __iq2, 1 8i5 09_ in cash __1,g3!d5i{gg_ ___1J?1,855,009-

N{inistq of Industries and Prr:dllctioll (il'IoIP), Gr.x.emmert of Pakistan is the Parent Conrpany cr-rntroiling
8{},317,+{}{} ie. 78.611i, (2{}13: 8{}.337,-}{J0 i.e. 78.61",,} *rdinatl rhares nf Rs. 1[] each of the Conrparl, and

f)eveloptrent Corporation (PIDC), ar associatecl cornpany. A11 shares carry equal votrlg urri .1i.,,i.l.rrcl nght and
ratk equally rvith regard to the conrpaly's residual assets.

2023 :{.i:2
Ir{ote _-*--*Aek Rapees}

ADVANCE AGAINST ISSUE OF SHARES

Fmcls receir.ed from N,toIP

Ilterest paitl or-r lotg tcrct loa* bE X,lolP

7.1 *__$72,580,102_ _LiEia0,+02_

8.1 3,496,223 3.961.456

L,026,733,966

145,946,536

7,02(t,133,866

1+5.8+6,536

Shares against this aclvarrce have tot been issued as cur:rertly the authorised share capital of the Cotrrpanr- is not
adequate.

2023 2{)32

Note ------------(PakRupees)
PROVISION FOR LEAVE ENCASHMENT
Provision fot leave encaslmrent

Prcr.ision for leave encashment
Bdaace;it {!1 }ulr.
(R.eversal) / charged during the vear
Paid during the ycar

Balalcc at 30 June

3,967"456

131,526

7

_3,496,223_

.1,621,185

150,785

1,1

_?.w&_

PAKISTAN STONE DEYELOPMENT COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized share capital

2023 2022

(Number of shares)

1l*"***_,&** 11{}"{}*{.}$i}r.}
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PAKISTAN STONE DEYELOPMENT COMPANIY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3A,2023

2023 2022

------------(Pak Rupees)

3L,r74,214 33,365.08t)DEFINED BENEFIT - GRATUITY

Payable tc gr*taity fuad
Present vah-re of defited benefit obligatron
F-air rzlue of plan assets

Net oblgatiol

A:x+tr*t t+ be ;cr*grise* in iaccme *rld *xptrrdi*rre *ccori*tf
(lurrent sen ice cost

Past senice cost (credrt)

Interest cost

Interest itc<tsx {}fl pla11 assets

t

Amount to be recognised in other comprehensive income
\cnranll ;nur on obhgrtions

Acnr,erial i*ss on plan assets

Expected contribution to be paid for the next year

Mavement in present value of defined benefit obligation
Present raiue of def1ned benefit obligatitrn - as atJulv 01

Clrrrent sen,.ice cost

Past sen-ice cost (credit)

Interest ccst

Belr,fits p*id
Retreasuremelt gain on defined benefit obligation
Present rralue o[ defined benefit obligation - as at ]une 30

Note

9.1.

9"1.

31,188,508

14

31,174,214

33,558,702

193,622)

_33,365r89_

3,296,514

1,439,977

3,749,993

95

8,{41,523

1,911,107

2.821.509

78,101

_i581&l_

(7,503,005)

{2,951
(1,+87,791)

I 7B.101

_-____(1,3il9,698-

6,553,550 _1_,4219%

33,558,702

3,296,514

1,439,977

3,748,993

(3i5r,663)

31,189,509

31,,871, r-]i
2,941,107

2,821,509

(2.587,90rD

1.187.791

33,558,7A2

ff'460,05,1i



PAKISTAN STONE DEYELOPMENT COMPAhIY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTI{E YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

Movement in fair value of plan assets

fiair value of plan assets - as at-Julv 01

I11te{est ll1c<jme r:o plan assets

Lottributi*n for the yc-"ar

Benefits paid

Return ot plan assets, excluding interest ncome
friair ralue of plan asse ts - as at-June 30

&tor"ement ia abligatian in b*l*n*e sheet
Balance as atJuly 01

Cirarge for the t ear

Acruarial gain ol gatuit]' r.aluation

C c*tributi*r rlunng thr: 1.cn1

Ilalerx* ;:s *i-!r-:rr* 3{l

Actuarial assumptions

Valuatiol discor,urt rate

Salan increasc ffite

Maturity Profile
Particulars
Yeat 1

Year 2

Yr:er 3

Year -l

Year 5

Year (r to Year 10

Year 11 arld above

Discount rate

Salary ilcteasc ratc

2A23 2022

------(Pak Rupees)

193,622

42,951

3,172,335

(3,351,663)

951

L4,294

1,281,522

178,101

1,500,0i)t)

(2,587,900)

78,101

193,622

33,365,080

9,44r,523

(7,460,054)

3\174314

311,590,255

5,58.+,515

(1,309.690)

(i.500

13,i6r,080

Sensitivity analysis
l'he calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitir-e to the assumption set out above. 'f he fcriloix,'ing table

suturrtrises holv' the ilrpact ot the defined belefit obligatiot at the end of the reporting period \\.ould ha\-e

increascd ,i (decreased) as a rcsult of a ciratge irr the resprctivc assutrptitrts by one percent.

Defined Benefit Obligation

t6.25%

5%

2A23

2,rgg,g23

5,620,681

3,794,342

2,730,858

2,115,47Q

24,626,130

36A,596,824

1 percent
increase

13.50%,

2022
tt,,---. \ __________

1,185,135

I qi() ioi
3.-+35.717

3,670,963

5,658,269

22,793,416

-t1J ;.q ()1-l

I percent
decrease

--(Pak 
Rupees)

(23,215,296) (17,243,149)

27,323,856 1i lal i77
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PAKISTAN STONE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3A,2A23

Opcning baiaacc

Arfi.atce receir.etl froflr cusiofirers rtrrurg the vcar
Advalce adjusted./rerumed clurilg tirc year

Ciosrng balancc

I
T

t
T

10.

T

T

I
Lf"
! u.r

!
| - rt.ztI't
It

'I'he abor-e sensitir.ities ate based ofl ayerage duration of the benefit obligation detenniled at the date of thc last
acararial l'aluation at 30 June 2023 attd are applied to arljust the defined bene6t oblipption ar the end of thc
reportirrg pedod for thc assulr'rpt1(llrs conccrned.

Description af risk:

The defined benefit plan exposes the Conrpany to the follou,'rng tisks;

Final salary risks:

The nsk that the hnal salary at the time r.rf cessarion rlf senice Ls greater tlutn rvhat rvas assumed. Srnce the beoefit ir
calcutrated on tire fiaal salan,, thc benefit amorult increases as salarl, irrcreases.

Withdrawal risks:

I'he dsk of acnral u.ithdtau'ls expetience is differelt fiorn assurled rvithdnurl probabili4. The srgnificance t:f tht
lvithdrarvl r:isk vades rvith thc age, sen ice and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.

Mortality risks:
'I'hc risli thar the achral mortalifi experiencc is differeot thal assurned mtxtaliq.. This etTect is rnore grrorrorurced ir
schemes rvhere the age and senice distribution is on the hrgher sicle.

2023 2A22

-*--------(Pak Rupees)
TRAI}E AND OTHER PAYABLES
-frade c,ri:dit*rs
Retention rlrxley payable

,\ccmed liabrlities

Incotre tax pavabie (ivithheid frorn parties)

Sr:cun1, rle.p6sits against re.r:ial incr.rnre

={*-t-*:ar< f,rr-r:rt q:r:*tr;nrers agai::st renerl i*cr:sr
Other papbles

&DYANCES FROM CUSTOMERS
;laira::te ftr,rr: alk:tiecs *g*ix;t <1er-r1*p*x:rl prrr. rFsfirc5

Note

5,643,082

13,652,454

80170,259

132,564

27,994,765

458,003

24,000

56,074.727

5.{:-13,{}82

13,652,05+

1t),736,030

113,++-l

38,3it1,1+7

-lilft,Bf)3

+3,70{i

_#szq&!_

1l.x 8B9,13e76S __lgge33,i60_
PASDIIC has established N{arble Ciq' Risalput *an inrlustrial estate dedicated for rnarble ancl granite sector, to
achieve cluster building function. The proceecls received frorl Custorners (i.e. provisionai allottees), has been

,recolylized as'Advalces from Custoners'T'he arlr-a.nce frtxr allottecs is arljustctl against correspondilg cr.rst 9f
develrlpmenl properties oa issu:urce of rcspectile possessirxr certillcates to the alloffecs.

This tepresents amouflt teceived agairrst allocation of 180 industrial ancl 6 commercial plots in X{arble Ciq Rrsa\r*r.
'I'his industrial citt, is being developcd to organize drmensionai stone inciustry activities, such as plrcessi,g,
establishment of marble storage ald displal, ce11ters, t ithrl c:ne r-icrnrt\-.

Mcl.ement of advances from customers are as follows:
2023 2022

691 i.rl 61i

88.e04.1.+5

809,133,760 780,933.7(r0

78S,933,760

28"20S,08S
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PAKISTAN STONE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE \aEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

12. LEASE LIABILITY
( )lrcntnq brrlancc

, \rltlitions

Plt ntcnts

\ccrctiiin oi ilttcrt st

.\s :rt .i{).1unc

( rrll'( nr l..t... Ir.rlrilrtr..:

\ ( )1)-cLr1'l'c1'rr lcrsc liebilitics

'I lt. LIrt,lir,,,Lr)r\(l nr.r,.nIl\

Lcrtst lrrn lncttts

:utrll\si\ ()t l!rlsc li.rltiljtrcs ilr.lt) ILutc 2(ll-l is rs lirlLnr-s:

2023

--------(Pak Rupees)--------

It-----_l
| | l|t,q6e.(,('7 

|

I | (o.ss 1,'{,8s)l

I l,l88,18s 
I

_13,801q)?

flso:sorltt
I rr,ror,rrrll
I t,pr,egs'l
__1_9nJn
r--1Mrt
-----J-wJn-

7,922,122 - 7,922,122:
13. CONTINGENCIESANDCOMN{ITMENTS

13.I CONTINGENCIES

1,3.1.1 Status of Larv suit bv ex-o\\ners of marble city Ris:tlpur

jurlqntt'nr.'l lrr llonourlblcSuPrcntc(-oLrrt<lisnrisscrl tlrcrplrcel of thchlrl:ZI)\l(_.

Pil\ :ll1\ sLtbsttltLcttt 1llcrc:lsc irt tltc c,rst oi lrtnrl rrll,r,,r'ccl br tlrc (-oLrrr. lJcforc thc crccrrtior-.r coLLrt tl)rstr.ict (-,Lrrt
\or,r'shcir,) K1)lll,1)II(- f-tlctl rrrt obicctior.r l)ctitir)1r un(ie1 s(cti()n J- oi (-iyil 1)r,rccrlsrc (l.rrt t, ,rrrlie l).\Sl)l:(-

, (.ourt ()n lrrtirclrnr(lrt oirhcir rLsscts r,r'hcrcin ]).\sI)rr(- is r.nrrrrc r.,rrrr'.

l;trrthcr, lil'l'./.1)\1(l hatl ulso illctl rn elrlrlicetron in (lir-il (_r,trrt I)csl.ilr.rrr rtg-ainst l).\Sl)lt(_ ro
pcr \rbitrltion ,\ct 19.+(). rvhich lls tlisttissc<l ()11 nl;linrlilllll)i1in q-roLulls oi jLrristliction. Nos
sLrch rtlrlrlicrtirirl irl (-ivil (-ourt \ri,,r'shclrr.'fhc t;rsc clccitlttl in irivr,r oil).\Sl)1,.(.:rs rrt llth lr-rlr

l{cs tl tc(l

2(it2

I .1.81) l.lJ( )-

Tot:rl

rcsolr c thc tlispr-rtc rts

l.,PI rZl)\l(. lrrs fllctl
lt)1.1.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2A23

Fi*t'er-er" in the e'e*t nf courr ciecisir-xr tirat Cr;*rpar* *-r-rulcj rec;r-rir-ed to pa.l, the increased nr.rrker 

'rice. 
I,:tccordance to the aEFeenle',t betwee. KPEZDN'fC & PASDEC, the allottees of the plots *.r:uld be tequrr:eil tourake paynert as pet tetms arlcl conclitions of allotne,t, therefore ,o pror.ision is recclrded i, these financial

stateflieflts itr this respcct.

fi:e Cr>*rp;lfir has recogrrizerl all afllcltflt cf Rs. 833.033 ,,,dlicn as der,elcpmefit pr{}perhes as rliscriss*i unclerrl*t*iirri r:;:fe 1B fr: thr:se 6r:a:rcial stitflI-,r,lti 'i:*d rr:sprctir-r: a.L.anct:s frr,xn the crlst{rfi1er} *ceir.cd arx,t,,1tx]g toRs' 809'133 milliofi as atJune 3a,2023,as described in the nore 11 t<; these fina,cial statements.

Ii.l.Z Conringency related to tax litigation
'rhe Coil:rpa11}' 11ras lFanted apprrx'al under clausc {36} r;f sectit-ra (i) or i,cor:nc 'ra,x ()rdi,a,c. ,{j01. Florvevet*:bsr:q*e*t tr-r thi:, fl}::e l:a= b.:rn c1:**g*s i:r r!:e l*cr:s::r: l*s {-krlim:rre. 4,.{acagr:*r*r:,r }.rcs appli*ri f,r:r rec*r-sl .fits tax cscnrptir,n certrficate $'hich is irr ptocess befrre Income 'lax J'ribunai. If s,ch apprr:ral is rejecterl than theCotrrpauv would be subject to minirnum tar liabiiio, @ 1.5,,,o of turno\.er whrch anlounts to Rs. g.75 miilion for taxvear 2i]17 to 2023' As per the coml:a,t/s inct.rrnc fax ari'isor, far-o.rablc outcofile is likelv a.cl accorrlingllpr:r-isi*n fcr rasation has nr-rr b*ea r:ecr-rgnizerl.

13.2.1

13'2'l 'rhrs 
inr-hrr{es culur:itmerfs rel;lfer{ tu rlrr.r:k;p*rr*f r:f infrastanct*re i'

I conn-acrors.

! "'
Commitments

Commitrrrents

2023 2022
----------(Pak Rupees)

5,593,000 --- mfrr-
marble ciry Risalpur tirh diffi.tent

I

I

I

l
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PAKTSTAN STONE DB"YELOPMENT COMPA]VY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE I'EAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2A23

L4.2 Depreciation charged for the period has been allocated
Cost <tf machinen pool
Aritridstratir-e exp ense s

14,3 The breakup of capital w-c;rk in propFess is as follows:
Civil rvorks

l)larrt arrd maclrinc,r-r'

L4.4 Leasehold Assets

Cost
C)pening

Additrr.xr

Accurnulated depreciation
OP'5n1"*

Depreciation for the rrear

wDv

15. RECEIYABLES FROM PROJECTS - NET
llpcnirg balatcc
-nrJr1: additirx:rs dr_lri*g the :-rar
l,css: recor.en durirg the vcar
Less: assets traasfer dudng the year to PPE
I-r:ss: ulpairment rccoqnized cluring the year
Add: rrrr'rrsal of inrpainnent duc to rec.r\-enr frr-xn prr:iects

15.1 Breakup of net receivables from proiects is as follow:
N{odel Quarq. Clltral
\,{odcl (]uarn, Khuzdar

"{.}*ry, Llp,.g*tl,rti*n },lesraqg 1 - Sale}xrt
{}:.:*r:r Lp-g::ld::r!r_r:r l{as*i:rg : , lziz
(]uat1, Lrp-gradation f.rAfA -l

Quarq, Up-gradatron Lctralai II

Rcstared

2A23 r|22
------------(Pak Rupees )

as follows
24,901,963

130,545

27,83?.409
1,176,100

_____?6,888,399_

26,759,239

13,977,461

_____tuigqq_

18,969,607

18,969,607

26,159,239

13,977,461

-t0,73(r.700

18,969,607

18,9{r9,61}7

5,796,269

6,323,202 5,796,269

15.3

15.r

4,661,8$
\*n#63

(r,810,590)

(32,086,136)

16,835,590

27,693,639

(6,524,000)

(2,,631,829)

6,124,000

,*37

2423

2+.661 810

15.2 -Ihe dr:trp:i*rl , t:tth the obiective tr.r demr.xrstrrie r:recii:rrrrzcd rnining techniques, has irx-ested in qnarrr- ,rr-rjecrs
iflclueling the above during the vear 2i){18-1+. fhis rnr-oh-es introrluction of nerv technoiogres alcl techaiq,cs
tlircugh establishment of rnodet quaries and up grariation of cxisting quarries. The Conrparlr recor.crs the
irl:'estruent b1 receir-iag ctrtain atllolt11t par t{Lil ttr)in prriilrrctio$ of str)l1e as per t]re respectir.e arrange&ent $,ith
j*iut r-ratures.

l2,llg,47l 5,796269

. 61850,136 13.173,338

2022
-..--------(Pak Rupees)*---

800,000

2,210,u9
1 665,669
Ir$54,233
2r55$,641

332,246

8,613.037

800,000

18,8-+8,217

1,655,669

1,{J;+,333

1,961,+16

332.216
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PAKISTAN STONE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

l-*s r.cr-isitccl thc asscssnrcnt consiclcring tl-re insignitlcar-rt rccovcrics ttrcl t'ccogtrizcd ttl itllprrirulellt Lrss oI lts'

prr > jcc ts.

l)trri,g thc lr\'l0ll-1.i, 1l1r 2r1n()Lurr oil{s. l.li1 nrilli<>n has l;ccn rcc,x-eLccl thlrtrsh s'.lle oIstotle oi]{s. o.31 nlillit>n

rlncl rccor-crr of 1).\Sl)1,-(l's sharc of lls. 1.5 nrillion. 'l'l.rc n.rachir.rcr\' ()i r-ehrc lts. .jl.OlJ6 nrillion hrts also llccrr

t..sti.rrccl tion.r l\lorlcl (]uarrl l.,lruzrlar to l).\SI)l'l(1. 'Ihcsc r.nachir.tr'-. incltrclc tnachitrcn r-alttccl .rs lts' io 6l5

'rilli.* 
r'aluccl 6r. Intlcpenrlcnt r-alucr NI/s .\nrlcrson (-onstrltins r'Lsailtst tl.rcil r-alue in l>oolis oi lts. l7'l n]illio['

s6cct cllrtc. 1c.rrct., irr rrgsrr.g:rtc t,rte1 .i ir-nplimrcnt rcr-crsal oi lts. l6.lJ35 trrillion has llecn rcc()gllisctl cltrrirlg

trtrtrtcirrl r.crrr r( )ll-13.

rcprcscllts c()st ()i t6e ..rsscts n.hich hlvt crLrning:rnl()urlI strbstantiallt-ccltriltlcrlt to thc t]]irrket Yalttc. tl-rcrctirrc'

trcsh r-al-retion has r-urt ltccn pe rtirrnrc'cl of tl'rcsc rttachirtes clltrit-lg thc lcar.

2022

6,339,350

21,573,048

27,912,398

(8,002,486)

19.909,9L2 __?8,860,n1_

t6.7 'l his inclr-tclcs Pltru c\ fi.atl.rcr. hlclro 1'[rshinu ltags, ISI) lorls, clcctric cal>lcs etc to lte ltsed as l)art oi ll.trtchirlt'rt .

2023

18.

L7

18

t
t
t
T

T

t
t
t
T

t
t-I
t-I
t
L

!

16. STORES AND SPARE PARTS

I)iamond wire

Others

NR\r loss

Note

16.r

2023

------------(Pak
784,365

627,492>

1.56,873

l1)ll

STOCK IN TRADE
( )pcnir.ru stock
(-onsrtn'rccl cltrlinu tltc t-crrr

Nl{\'loss

DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES
l,linrl
(lapitrlisccl borrot'itrg cost l1ct

( -ons trtrction. rclatcd c( )-sts 1l1lcl clircctlt- attlilltrtrlllc cos t

\\'rite clos'n oi urlrblc cirv l{is'.rlpnr to NI{\'

7,S+ 3(r5

88,390,000

735,599,975

609,043,203

I'iti..i90.o(x )

1.15.599.975

i(.llr)jOf )l

S()i')ro a,()S18.2 933,033,178

1g.1 'l.his incluck,s la[cl haYi[s Yahrc <>[ ]ts. -t-t.71 nrilliorr il0ll: l{s. lts. l-1.71 nrilli<>rr) \'hicli hrrs ltcctt accltrirccl t}otn

IilrNIlrZl) & NI(- ltirnrrallr. lin<xvr.r as Slrl'rrrcl I)eveloPnrerrt.\utlioritt.("Sl)-\') uttder atl llsrcclllctrl firr: thc

tlcr.clrl-r6rcnt of NIrrble (-in'ltisrpltrr. l-hc title riilrntl hls not bccn trrurstcrrccl in thc rtrtl'tc oithc (-otll1-lrtrit

l8.lJ61 ).-fi+

.i,i 59.(r(rr

(1.096.6+o)

6..1.19.350

ll.5l l.+.1+

I
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PAKTSTAN STONE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3A,2A23

18.2 Breakup of Development Properties
l)er,-elopmerrt property relatcd to Marbie Cirv Risalpur
Adjustmernt of Development Properfi against piots

Devciopment property related to Marble CrW Loralai
Der-r:iopment propert\ related to Machincn Pool Risalpur
I)er-eiopmerlt propertt. leiated to Caddani

19,7

TXA}E DEETS
'I'rade debts - considerecl goor{
'frade debts - considered doubtftrl

Less; espected ctedit krss

Agrrg analysis of trade debts is as follorrs:

Not yet due

Past due
31 to 9li rlar.s

'J1 t* ltli.! ilals
181 ro 365
NIore than 365 days

Mcvement of expected credit loss during the year
()peml.q balance
Charge fcrr the year
Reversal cluting the year
Closing balance

AtrI,,AhTCES
Aclr,ances to enployees r considered gooci
Adr-ancc:s to suppliers - considered good

}EFOSITS AN}} PREFAI}{ETVTS
Sec*dn depr.isrts

Prepa-l.ments

SHORT-TERM INYESTMENT - AMORTIZED COST
1'em: llepcsit Receipt ff1}Ri

2023 2t)22

------------(Pak Rupees)

1,023,546,933

198,889

824,657,354

99(t,434,153

98,1199,57

797,5++.ti74

6,487,017

I17,500

1,77I$47

8,375,824

6,+87,017

1 17,5(X)

1,,i t-1,3{)7

8.375,ti24

833,033,I78 ____g!5,e20ff_

18.3 This r:epresents cost spend tbr der-elopment of 180 industnal ancl 45 commetcial plots in iv{arblc Citv Risalpur,
along rvith cost incuffecl cxr planning and accluisition of 5() ;\cres lancl of N{able Citi Loralai.

19.

19.1

28.

21.

2023 2022
------------(Pak Rupees)Note

19.1

19.2

17,589,619

65,999,409

83,599,029

(65,999,409)

17,599,619

g,1gg,g0g

21610,906

66,709,839

42;
65,999.409

17,776,85+

66,709,939

81,186,692

(66,709,838)

__ji,776,85a

5,750,35(,)

3,ll(;.9-i7
2,325,6 i2
I.lir_1,-)o_-1

71.663.12{)

67,393,81,6
-li() rqo

11r rI. T 1T

__-_6€,2q9.838_
I
I
t
t
t
I

5,146,556

1.005.567

6.152.123

6,53ti,07.:1.

1,0{.15,567

_J&3.641

1,6*9,362

1"247,067

1,(r48,362

l,'-1f,)iJ

2,855,429 2,881,885

__&eL028- ______q!$6.6e2_

17
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PAKTSTAN STONE DEYELOPMENT COMPA}IY
NGTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

25" CTHE*" *ECETVABLE$

23.1 lI{*reaent of expected credit loss &ring the l.ear
Openirg balance t

Charge for the vear

\Yriten off during the vear
Rcr<rsal rhuirtg the year

L-lorilg balnlce

2023 20?2
**-:--(Pak Rupees)-Note

Due from related parties - unsecured
Irakistan I.dustrial f) e'elopment Corp oration - consiclererl cloub tfr ri
F,,\'I:\ - Secretariat - considered doubt{Ll

Prol-isit* irrr drrirbrfirl receir-*blrs frr-rn rclatrd partics

Others
- cotsidered good
- considered doubtfrrl

Pror.ircior.r lt':r dor"rbttul otlrrr teceirables 23-l

Receivable frorn Comp etitir,-e Industries proiec t Idrvb er pakrrturrkhwa

Sales tax receir.able - rret

19,050

L92A,579

\939,629
tr,g39?ezg)

173,234

10,844,349

1L017,582

(10,&*4,348)

173,2N

2,ggg,6g4

239,435

3,412,353

14454,n9

781

10"844,349

19.05{l

1,920,57e

1.93rt,629

(1.939,{r29)

5.17,105

12,-15-1,129

13.001,23+

(r 1,15+,t l9)
547, I 05

800,960

501,475

1,949,540

12,-1."1(:,823

257,306

50,000)

i:.+5+,1:9

24, INCOME TAX REFUNDABLE
The Companv$'as grailted approral uflderclause (36) of sectiofl (2) of lncome'f'ax Orclilance 2001.I{o\.e!er.
substquclt to this thc-re has beet chalges in tl're lrrcone 1'ax f}rluunce. Ilatagement has appliecl for
rr:rr:E'al,/gra:rt of the said :tppri;rai, u.fiich cirsr is i:*rcling be&-rre Tribunal ltcr-rr1e Ta-x. The Cr:mparx- has ;rlsir
adt'aflce tax tefundablc- from taxatiofl authorities ag$egating to Rs. 3?.2J miiliofl as atJufle iU,2t,?3 (2{)22: .31.7g
million; for which the Compaav has fiIecl tax refuncl applicatiol an<l has compilecl the supportng evirlence for
the preceding )'ears. The refund of achance tax u;ill depencl o\-e( the pgaflt of appror.al uncler Secti6n 2(3(r) of
Income'fax Ord.inalce 2001-

CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS
Cash and balk balances

Tmm deposit Certificates

Note
25.

26.
,,

5,499,940

9,S0S,oo0

14,{99,940

17,774,241

1 i_i,ii{l{.r,(}00

'):,;l+,?-l+

Irl



PAKTSTAN STONE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNB 30, 2023

?6. CA*T:IAN}BANKBAT"AhICES
Cash in hand

Bank balances:

Curtent accoullts

llrp*sit acc.]tults

Note

26.L

28.1

2A23 20?2

------------(Pak Rupees)-

98,175 53,211

,n

28.

26.1 'lihese carry interest rate raoging from

&ETENT]E
lncorne frorn machinery rentals

Sen'ice charges ofl rental of (.,IPK machincry

Sale of blocks

COST OF SALES
Cost of blocks

Cost r,[machirren pool

28.1 C*ST OFI!{ACHINERYPOOL
Salaries. \\ages alld other benefits

Cr-,nsultanc,r, chatges

l)cpteciatiol
'fravr:11i45, kxlging atrl coorerance

,{dratisr,merrt
Fteight charges

Rent

Loormurrication

\jehicles' tuuring anrl lnairlterlarrce

E*t{rta;E}:er}t
Legal and ptottssit-rta1 charges

Lltfities
I 
)n:rtir rg and staliorren

Tnsuraace

Llihcr -*upplies

Securiq' serr-ices

lupairment due to decrease it NR\" oi stock

Rep'arrs atrd ntarn tcnarrcc

Stotes altl spares cortsurned

Bar*; charu('s.'ct.xttmr.*sir,tr

1 liscrjl*:rt*q-o *,rF{:!Ls{:s

28.2 lt is re lated t(] the cost of sto{es atrd spares sold &rzurg the r-ear.

13J5o,'o to 19.5% per aflflum (2022:13.i5oi'o to 14'4oQ'

2023

Note
-..:Ctak 

Rupees)-

2,290,013

5,111,654

5"101'66?

5,499,84t)

83,154,753

13,168,535

96,323,288

6,2t)9,701

11,511,329

1?J21,031)

1;,;?+,:++

2022

78,650,02.t
i -l()0 ')Rq

1,717.21){)

85,888,213

65,7$,0;
65,783,826

2,096,6.11)

71,9+0.096

74A36,136
G

14.2

t7

28.2

?3,273,018t,

24,901,863

448,801

130,874

1,765,800

1,442,345

154,490

,12215131

65,3?S

fim,ffi0
67A,9?-l

21"420

2r1i1,549
63,4A9

576,84$

627,492

7,192,592

98!,186

5,5L1

65,783,026

24,136,793

200,000

25,7'.12,299

453,860

168,718

171,600

1949,153

151,445

681,0{i0

540

57),998

677,520

27,910

2,54{},911

86,491

563,365

478,662

73,461,697

2,134

71,9.1ti,096

-

I
I
_l

t
I



PAKTSTAN STONE DEVELOPMENT COMPAI{Y
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 1TAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

?9. .{I}I€INISTL{TN'E EXPENSES
Salanes, rx,ages zncl oliler belref;ts

Consriltanc;'' charges

Depreci,ntir:rr

Depreciatiot on tght of use asset

Trar-e11i:rg. 1*dg*g ald cortr-evalrce

,{rtr.-rrtisement

Iireight chatges

Rent
( -ornmunica tiorr

\''ehirles' *ntir41 and maiotenatce

Errf.ertaiarrae-rt

Legal and professioual charges

Lrtilities

l)rrr rtutg arrcl sta tiorren'

Itsura-tce
'l'railrirg"s

Office supplies t
\uditors' remulcra tiort

Secunn' srn'ices

Repaits attd ntaintettattce

i:il1r;spapcr$! biiott arrd periodicals

Rank charges/'comrnissron

Nlarketing expeflses

L\{iscelianeous e)ipe11ses

29*t It i:rc!*<l*r gr*tr*1' r:f Ri. &++1.i11 i3i]3} ;,ie']li)
alnounting to Rs. 2 1,009,19 3 (2022: 17,534,9 1 0)'

29.2 Breakup cf auditor's remuneratiorr is as follaws:

Audit tbe:

Code of corporate Elovefltance rer-ierv fee

Out ofpocket expeflses

{pplicahle sales tax

*rrrl r=*rxri:atic:r o{ C}:"{-}, I}i:rctr-irs alcl }lrtcutrre

29.l

L4.2

td.4

29.2

Note
20?3 2022

------Aak Rupees)-

2022

225,388

75,1.29

30,000

+8,ilB3

1?8,{rtl0

RuPees)----
57,937,835

500,816

1,176, i()t)

i,796,269

1,27 5,27 L

-t6?,-i:6

500

2,794,812

915,383

l.-lltt,(r7ll
63"-1i)9

1,378,153

1,,+.+1,131)

+20,140

-115.53+

220.935

378.601)

2,05i).79+

1,079,452

22334
3,678

25,000

7,350

---7L0!lt)r-

271,551

90,517

30,000

57,93L

_teqgg_

6t"7ff7,871t

623,7W

2,130',545

6,523,2fi2

84t 266

85,t57

\466,W4
936,538

\29t\766
l{8,?3r

1,134,I50

L,527,4?
681,658

4lr"?67

130,000

281"983

450,000

2,69r"969
yl4,149

72,745

1,270

958,831

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

l
T

l
I
I
t
I
T

t
I
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PAKISTAN STONE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THH YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

30. OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets

lrrcome from satilrg ACC( )Llllls

lfltetest ilcome on short-temr ilN-esttrlerrts

Rer-trsal of pr*r-isiot tlrrough ffc{;Yerr-

Income from non-financial assets

l-orefeitcd dep,,sits

lLestoration, trailsfer fee ar:rd othets frorn plots

Surcharge r-irl Ltte pal'meflts agpinst the plors allotmerrt

Pt**lq: r*cg-rr*ttrl frlrrrr c{}*t€tg{}r

i rrsur:ance rcco\rerl'

lncome ftom Sale of ScraP items

lncorne from QUG Dir Granite

f)thcrs

?0ZS Z{}22

------(Pak Rupees)--Nate

1,216,238

948,212

2,3,Jl.r2l0

4r,t8'3r668

) 11. r1r)

8{}5.{,30

1 ,1

*,-381,976

?,11$.944

11,595,604 16,215,?71

150,000

8,818,58+

:1:tr,tjili)

720,t{dt

20.tr,710

l,)l il{l(l

1,(r3'4.838

11,8.r3tr98

2,967,7&
1I3,583

sau6

t 980,000

494,500

955

t
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PAKTSTAN STONE DEYELOPMENT COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS

FOR TlrE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30' 2023

belefits ancl perquisites, \trere as follor'vs:

REMUNERATION GF CHIEF EXECUTIVE ANN BIKECTORS

The ag;Aegate a$tt:tllils rharged i* ihe Etar:*:ial siater$entc f*r tl.re :"ear rvifh resptct to temutreration' i*cludilg

10,590,012 8,56-l-291

1,550,000

393,693 15,200 59,381)

- w43,6% -1i,277,484 
g'z4l,tjz

n- 4 4

f-r.rmparrt tnaintairlecl cnr as p€r his lruit'

ol crnpiotrnerlt atd <ietenrriried based ol

N{anagerial

remufletatioll

,\llorvances ar-rd

rneetitg i-ee
-f 

tar t lli*g arrrl *ther
rxptj::i5e*

Gratuit-l' exPense

Nurnber of Persons

31.1 -Ihc {-ltir:f }:ixecsirrt rs

(,rarurn i5 Pa\abl( tu
actuarial valuations'

7,200,000 6,000.000

444,47* .1+3,t1+

1,150,000

1g?,533T

I
750.000

s.394.474 6,343,914

11

pr,rr-ir1et1 u'ith tntdic'al irlsurattct iaciliq' arlrl

tl-re Exec&tires in accorclarlce witil ihe tcrms

1,33?1535

32, TRANSACTIONS WITH REI-{TED PARTIES
.rlrr 

{iomparri. is subsidiart of \liristrt of lnrjlstries and ?rotlnctior. Government of Pakistar (thc "}are.t

tli-.mparrt"i. 'lherefore all thc drlartment arld agc,rt*1 o"tt*ftl b-r- the Pafclrt cornpail'r afe telated partiers lri the

Companv. other related parties cornprise of associatecl companies, clirectors ancl close farnih rnernbers' companles

rvith comrnon clirectorship, executl\:es. kev 1lrao,.rgement pcrsorlnel and maior shareholders of the (-ompanv'

Rala,ces w-ith relatecl parties are shorvn elsen,here in the notes to the flnaocial stateileflts' Remuleratiorr ctf chit-i

executive, directors a*cl eliec,tir.es is riisclosed in *.te 29 to the fina'cial statefileflts' 'fransactiotrs *-ith relatecl

parti*ilirclrrstdeiserr.heteirrtlresefitrarrci:rlstateftefit$areaifollrrrr-s:

asis of relationshiP
Percentage of shareholding

\liaistrl of Industties and

Ptirlucti*rr, Governmett of
Faki:tal
Pakistan itdtlstrial Developrnent

Corporatiot [Associated Compani ]

Si.ramarna Tul :\mber Arbab

K l'rar.iin'r i-Ir:ssain

Itizrsa* -lhmed Bhatti CE(). PiD{l

Nairnatullah Kltart

Sardar Rizrvatr Keirar

Ilashim Raza. ChlO S\'IEDA

,\hsan -!li \{ttgi Sect. 'ID:\P

A drli tir:*a l Seeteta 4'-i l lol.kP

Rabar ilirai Shami

Sirahzad lJas}arat

l{oin (ladir.}aniua

Naveed ikhtar
Rukhsam IqL,ai

Parent

Associated comPailY

ChairPersoa & L)irector

IXrector
Dirertr:t
l)irector
I)irectot
Director
Director
Director

{lhief Executile r' KeI -\Iarrapgnrent I}ersorlel

Ker 1 laaa-eemelt Persorrnei

I{e.v \ lariagen-refl t Persofl rrel

Ke1 \lalagement Personnel

Ker }{tntgemett ?ersontel

80,327,400

21,858,098

NIA
I.r/A

1

N/A
NIA

. N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
NIA

78.61it o

Slrares

21.390i,

Shares

Chief Executive

N/A

t
i
t
l

I
t,



PAKISTAN STON E DEVELOPMEN'I COMPAT\|Y
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

Traas*etio:rs q'ith associated companv
Shares issued to PID(l

Remuneration of key management personnel
Remutcratiorr, allr:rvarrces atd betefi ts

32.1 Rerriuneratiorl of key managerial personnel
\ Ianagcrial r('rnu,rcra tion
Travelling expellses

2023 2t),22

______(p"k Rupees)_-_-___

32.1 17,794,0t2 1+,970,587

a-nironqt H-;,,7:o:-l
| +sg,ez+ ll +o-t.:,r r 

I

__ rB 24e,68!_ __llJl9rEl_



PA}QS1"AN STONE DEYELOPMEN'I (JUMIJANY
NO'IES T'O THE FTNANCIAI- STATEMENTS
FOR'rI-IE YEAR ENI)ED JIJNE 30, 2023

3J. F-INAN CI A I, RISK ]!{ANAT]EM I..]NT
T'hr G:,r:rp,m'r leas exlFslrf, t(; the f'rll**rtg risks css,rciated vith its huncial ir:s{eaDeltsi
i.-rriir:i:ir
Lrqrridrtl.rsk
\{arkct ri-sk

The senior managernent of the Comp,urv rnauages its capital to ensure thtt it wrll be able to continue as going crncems u'hile rnaximizing tie re tum

(.,,r1i;11;r'< p'licitr rrrrl nik aplxtiir.

I he capital structxre oi- the Cotnpany consists of equitl (comprismg rssueci capitai arcl atlvance against issus oi slures trl note 6 & 7). i hc
tlotrpanv is not subject to any extemallv imposed capital requircmertts.

The lJoard reviet's tnd agrees the policies for measuring each of their osks s,hich are summarizecl belorr:

FINANCIAT INSTRUMENIS BY CATEGORIE.S
Th* Campm;rs stiviti*s tm ex1rewl to a vmiety of fararcial dsLs name.ly crre<tit risk, irteest rate ri-r\ foreign exchmge risk a*ql liq}}idiry risk.

:trj: 
ris&s trisirg fn:r thr {--cmJxrfs 6naxisl irs*arvrmr; xe limiretl. The {--r:mJn*v *a$4gs ir* *"goo* r* fie*ri*} risk in ihe fcll+*,irg

June 3O,2023

INTEREST / MARK TiP BEARING NON INTEITEST I MARK-T]P BEARINC
Matrrity MaturityIlercriptioa

F-INANCIAL ASSE'TS
Amortised cost
Tgde del:ts - net
1{ecr-ir.*hles fr*m prr:jecfs - net
-tdrmres
**:er rceir':+lies - *at
(lash md hank baiances

FINAN(:IAL IIABIIJTIES
Firanci*l Iiabilities rnemured
at amalr(azed cr$t
Trsde *ki t>;[rs p*r*]k:

Junc 3{),2022

Materity i!{aturity
up to after SuL'iotal up fs tftEr Sub Totel 'Iot*l

ene}-ear aae ].€t

3,{1,654 3,11L,654 2,388,185 - 2,-198,185
3,r.11,654 3,111.654 29,542,280 8,613,037 38,155,317

56_{}143t7 5f,r)?4,?27
56,074,7n s6,w4,7n

INTEREST / MARK TIP BEAF.ING NON INTBREST / MARK.UP BEARING

tfieYear ,reyeSf

-----(Ilak Rupees)------------

- 17,599,619

8,61.1,0-37

- 6,t52,t2i
- .1,+r]-1.i.1

17,589,619
8,613,037

6,llz,lx
3,4rX3-iJ

17.589,619
8,613,037

6,152,123
3,4r43s3
5,4gg,g4a

__4r,%6fi3_

ffi,{}?4,727

-*_s6,luJn_

flescription

FINANC{AL ASSETS
Amortised cost
'['rrrde debts , ne t
Receir,:rb1es from projects - net
.{dvrmces
Olhsr le{til'ahl*s , ilst
l}sh :urd lrmii b;ilrmcts

I]INANCIAL LIABII,TTIES
Iri n ancial liabilities rneasured
at amortized cost
Inde md r:tl:er plryrblcs

ilfaturity Maturity
up to after

ofle veal sn€ y€ar

Maturity Maturity
up to after

one y€a, one y$ar
SutrTctal Sub Total Total

II,5il,;2g 11,ilil,,n 6,2q9r5 17,774JJr'.
11,.5ft,-r_3, - lt,5ll,J:9 JJ,-|J2,950 24,66t,8t0 5r{,09_t,76{J 6r,606,ri90

58,9?0,260 _ .58,970,260 58,970,260

58.970.260

{Pa}Rupee}--

17,776,854

7,543,641
t,849,540
6,2€1e]s

24,661,810
17 ,776,854 17,?76,854
24,661,910 24,661,910
7,543,641 7,543,641
1,u491540 1,tJ49,540

59,970,260 58,970.260



PAKISTAN STONE DEVELOPN{ENT COl\IPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEI\IENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

33.1 Crcdit risk

33.1.1 Exposure t() crcdit risl<

Iollol:

2023 liltl
-------(Pali Rupccs)------

'l mdc .lclrts - ttt t

li.eccir rtlrlis ilrrtr l)rojccts

\ rlr rurccs

( )thu' rcccir rtlrlts

Sh,rrl t.rlr in\ (strr(rtt
(.rrslr .rrrtl lrrn]i blllrrccs

33.1,2 Inrpairrncntkrsscs

I hc rrgirtg ol-rtctllrtlrl( xt th(' r(1)()1llrIq (litt( is

\ot r ct dtrc I i(.) cler s

\ot rtt rltri 3l-9{} this
l)ltst tlrrr' () I I 8( ) diu s

l)rst rlur 131 365 rhrs

\lrrt tltrtn 3(r5 rler s

Note

33.1.2

15

20

23

22

26

17,589.619 ll I --(,.si+

8,613.037 ll l+.(,(,1 \lr)
6,ls2,l2Jll -.1+r.(,+l

3.-t12.353 ll t s+"..+tr

9,000.00t ll llt.tttttt.ttll
t] ,111,211

50,266,972 J().(,t)(,.(rri(l

20222023

-Gnrss Nct
ImPairr.c,t 

Rcccir.irblcs

\ r.lGr,ss ImPairrncnt 
rit crrr .rrrrt s

8,188,809

587,420 
-

8,188,809 ;.15r ).i5r )

587,,120 .l.lt(,.e+l
- l..lla.6 I l

5 75il 15( l

- 3,?26.()+1

(69.768) 2,255,u++

2,610,906 (1,305,453) 1,305,453 1,520,363 (760,1 82) 760.1 81

72,201,893 (61,693,95q 7 ,507,937 I I .661. 11o r,i s- t.s:s i l, .l.5ll
83,589,028 (65,999,409) 17,589,619 84,486,692 (66,709,8-+1)) 17,776,1J5+



PAKISTAN ST'ONE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3A, 2A23

credit ratings oim'.rjor banks s.l-rere the Companv maintains its bank balances tre as follorvs:

Name olBank

L*itrri l1::::L iiarit*d
\liretl B.rnk limitccl

Rank Aliilah Lrmited
\{CB Bank Limited

33.2 M*rket dsk

Rating Agency

1l'-l
PACRT

PACR.{

PACR.{

Credit Rating
Short Terru Long Term

-{-1+ ,'L'L{
\ t" \\\
,{.-1+ A.\+
,t-1+ a1-A

33.2.1 Interest rate risk
Interest Rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fufure cirsh flov,s of e fin:rncial instrument will fluctuatc because oi
the changes in market interest rates.The Company's income ancl operatrng cash tlou,s .are suhstantiallv inclepenclent of
market interest ratcs.

r1r thr rr:P,;rrting d:ite, the interest rtte prr:ifilr r:if the Cr',1mp:it1-'* inlerest-L:e..iring iin.;rncial instnrrnents rvas:

2tJ23 2022
------------(Pak Rupees)----------

Financial assets

B.;nk L::rlrnces _3Jn,6U_ _11,5i,1L329
'J'i"rr *fi*r:fire iltrrrst mt{:s fi,}rthc i-rnanciel ilssels iire menti**ed ir: respecti.,.r nrtfs t., t}re financi:rl srateme[is.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
.\t Junc 3A,2023 it interest rirtes 1-rad been 50 basis points hi-qher/ lorver and all other r,-.ariables rvere hcld consr:rnr.
the (iompanr,'s profit beibre tax firr the year enrletl June 3t). 2023 rvould inr;rease/ decrease bv Rs.60.553 (2022:
increase,/ decrease bi' Rs 107,557).

F+reigx s*rreasl, ri*k
For:eign cur.enc)' risk is the risk that changes in ioreign exchange rates u,-ill affect the Company's income oi the value
oi its hc,lding of t-inancial instruments. I'he objectite of fbrcigl currencr- risk exposures tithin acceptable parameters.
u,hi1e optimizrng the return rrn irnancial instruments.

T1-re {-*rr.rparrr dr;es n*t l::rr-r :urr Er:.rncial insfrrrm*nis ilr-*h-ing:,rn-i. for-eigr cur:renc}, risk.



PAKISI-AN STONE DEVELOPMENT COMI'ANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2023

33.J Liquidiryrisk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise u.iil encounter ditficuities in raising funds to meet comrlittrents :lssocr.rteLi
rvith financial instruments. Prudent liquidity nsk n.r'anagement implies m:rintaining sr-rtficient cash and b.ank b.alrnces
anil avarl:lhiliq, of funding througl.r an adeqr.rate amolrnt of comnittecl credit t:;rcilities.

Fir-:a*si;i li:lbilities iu :rrcl'rdaace r,".itir rheir c,:rntrrctr-:l{ rnrrturitir:s are prr-esrnred helc,rv:

I

June 30, 2023

"Irade aad other payables

june 3t), 2022

Trade and other pa,yables

Rupees

Carrying Contactual Less than I
amount cash flows Year

56,474,721 56,A74,727 56,074,727

__56,*7 4,? 2?_ _56,{J? $ n_ _5!rp7 I W

Rupees

Carrying
amount

Contractual Less than 1

cash flows Year
58,970360 59,97A,26A 58,970,260

jfig,26g_ 58,970,260 s&970,?60

33.4 Fair ralue of financial Instruments '
[']air r.alue is the price that rvoukl be received to sell an '.lsset or paid to transfer a liabiliry in an orderly transactior.r
bett'een market participants at the me'.lsurement c{ate, rcgardless of rvhether that price is rJirectly o}:srn'able or
estim;rtec-l using alotl.rer laluation technique. ln estim:rting tl-re fair r.;rlue r-if afl :1sser or a lialrilis, tire Cornpany takcs
lntr-': ittttlu:rt the charar-:teristics r-rf the irssct or lial.'ilif ii m"rrket p.articip;urts rvor:ld tlire those ch:lr:rcteristics into
:tc:-:{-}nnt !!L1rn prir:ing thr tsset r;r liabilifi lt thr me:isuresent drtte. Thc Complu-r! has n<_r hnancial instmrnents rmcler
the tair vaiue hier.iirchr. -\s at st-itement of ft-rancial position dete, tire c.an1,ing values oi the hnanciai assets ancl
frnurncial liabiliries approximate tl.rcir thir valucs.

33.4.1 Fair vah.re hierarchy
Tire r-;'rrrring ralues of the i-in;rnri:rl a-sseis -.xxi l-inanri:rl liahilities :rpprr:ximare dreir i:rir ralues. Fair r,alue is thc price
that '"v-oulcl be receiverl to sell iir asset or pairl to transter ,.r irabiliq' in an ortiedv hznsaction betrveen market
participants :rt the merrsurement date.

Fair value hierarchyl

' Let-el 1 Qu,:ted prices iunadir-rsted) in :rr:tive nrarkrts krr identic.,rl isseis .-)r li:rbilities

- Lerel 2 inpun; othcr ihan qucrcd pricts inuiudcri sithin lcr cl I d:at arc ;bscrc:iblc ior drc a-rs.t L,i: li:rbiliq-, cirhcr
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectiy (drat is, clerir.ecl irom prices)

' Level 3 Inputs tbr the asset or hability that are not trirscd oo obsen:lirle market tlata (that is, unobsen'able iniruts)

'fht {iornpi:r:y rlctg5 11411 helt iiny fir'.lrci'.ll ilrshrmrnas rshich :rre requiretl tc i1: jassitie{ Lrnrler 2firreseiti trir ral-re
irier;rrciries.
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33.5 Capital risk management
The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Companls abiJity to continue as a going concem

so that it can continue to ptovide retum for shareholders and benefits for othet stakeholders; and to maintain a st1ong

capital base to support the sustained development of it businesses.

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concem. There were no changes

to the Company's approach to capital management during the yeat and the Company is not subiect to extemally

imposed capital requfuemeflts.

2023 2022

-----Number-----

34 NUMBEROF EMPLOYEES
Total numbet of employees (contractual) at end of the yeat

Avetage number of employees (conttactual) during the year

CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been re-classified rc-atanged fot bettet ptesentation of transactions and events for the

pulpose of comparison. However no significant reclassification has been made dudng the year, excePt Short term

investment was classified under head "cash and bank balances". However, duting the year it has been presented as

separate line item on statement of finmcial p6sition in "Curent Assets". Sales tax receivable was classified under the

head "trade and othet payables" which calssified undet the head "othet receivables". "Interest on shott term invesment

was classified under the head "intetest income from saving accounts" vrhich has beeo ptesented as separate liae item

under the head t'Other incorne".

DATE OF AUTHORJSATION FOR ISSUE
ial statements were authotized for issue by the Board of Directots on of the Company in its meeting held

2 c^'3
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